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PRESS:

None

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. .(gavel) . . , The Housing and Human Services meeting will
now come into order. At this time I'd like to introduce Members that are present.
Member Carroll, Member Jo Anne Johnson, and my Co-Chair, not Co-Chair, but
Vice-Chair Member Molina. Members, if there is no objections, I'd like to recess
this meeting to five o'clock this afternoon.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Five or six?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Five o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we do have some people from Oahu that need to get
back to Oahu so five o'clock would be sufficient time for them to do the
presentation and leave this Council Chambers. So if there is no objection, this
meeting is recessed to 5:00 p.m. this afternoon .... (gavel) ...
RECESS: 1 :33 p.m.
RECONVENE: 5:16 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. Members for Housing and Human Services
Committee meeting will now come back into order. At this time Members, as the
Chambers is being cleared after the Council meeting, I would like to call a recess
and we'll reconvene at 5:30. . .. (gavel) ...
RECESS: 5:17 p.m.
RECONVENE: 5:30 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
... (gavel) . .. Good evening, Members. Thank you for
sticking around. For the members in the audience, I'd like to reintroduce the
Committee members that are here this early evening. We do have Member
Carroll, Member Johnson, Member Mateo, and Vice-Chair, Member Molina. I'd
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also like to introduce the staff are Carla Nakata, Shannon Alueta, as well as,
Clarita Balala. And up front here we do have our Corporation Counsel, Ed-MS. ALUETA: Ed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Kushi ... a long day, and Director Alice Lee from the Housing
and Human Services area.

ITEM NO. 4(1):

COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AFFORDABLE-HOUSING PROJECTS
PROPOSED PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 201G, HAWAII REVISED
STATUTES (LOKENANI HALE)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to take testimony as soon as the developer has done
their presentation and the reason to that is I understand that some of the
members that are here that's going to be doing some presentation need to catch
a plane. So at this time I'd like to call on the developers to do their presentation
for the Members of the Committee. Karlynn.
MS. KAWAHARA: Good evening, Committee Chair Pontanilla and Members of the
Housing and Human Services Committee. My name is Karlynn Kawahara and I
am a planner with the firm of Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc. Joining me today are
members of the proposed Lokenani Hale project team. I would like to take this
opportunity to introduce them. They are Mr. AI Fujisawa of Fujisawa and
Associates; Mr. Vernon Inoshita and Mr. Johnny Wu of Design Partners, Inc., the
project's architects; Michael Munekiyo of Munekiyo & Hiraga, the project's
planners; Diane Kodama of M & E Pacific, Inc., the project's civil engineer; and
Mr. Russell Chung of PBR Hawaii, the project's landscape architect.
The proposed 62 one-bedroom, Lokenani Hale project, is located in Wailuku and
is bounded by Central Avenue, Loke, Nani, and Wailani Streets. Currently, the
project site is made up of five parcels, TMK Nos. 3-4-12, parcel nos. 45,47,48,
83, and 86. The property is currently seeking a subdivision consolidation to
become one parcel. Lokenani Hale will be a four-story building and feature
amenities such as a recreation room, solar water heaters, and sorry, as well as
storage and laundry facilities. The project is also located within the Wailuku
Redevelopment Area and received approval on its Maui Redevelopment Agency
application at the March 19th MRA meeting.
Lokenani Hale will be a 100 percent affordable elderly housing project. The
project received State and Federal affordable tax credit, excuse me, affordable
housing tax credits in August 2003 through the program administered by the
Housing and Community Development Corporation of Hawaii or HCDCH. When
the Lokenani project received approval for this tax credit program, it was required
to follow conditions set by the HCDCH. Some of these conditions are: 1) that
the project must stay as an affordable elderly housing project for 50 years; 2) the
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project will be open to those 62 years of age and older who make 50 percent or
less of the area median income (according to the 2004 guidelines for Maui
County, the annual income for a single person would be $23,750 and for a
couple, $27,150); 3) the project is also restricted to a range of rent that it can
charge. Those rental rates are set by HCDCH. Preliminarily, the monthly rental
fee will be $595 per month, including water and electricity. There are no other
monthly maintenance fees. The project is allowed to increase the rent subject to
the approval ... review and approval by HCDCH.
As I mentioned earlier, this project is located within the Wailuku Redevelopment
Area and the Lokenani Hale project submitted its MRA application requesting
variances from the Wailuku Redevelopment Area Zoning and Development
Code, also known as the Wailuku Small Town Code and the Maui County Code,
as well.
There were four variances that were sought, building height, building setback,
variance from a parking requirement related to access, and exemption from
roadway widening requirements. Additionally, there were 25 conditions placed
on the project and I believe you have received a copy of the MRA approval letter.
I won't go into detail in each one, however, I would like to point out that the
project is planning to construct sidewalks around the perimeter of the property,
which will be privately owned and privately maintained, however, open to the
public.
Another condition is that the trees for the project will be six to eight feet in height
to help minimize the visual impact of the building. We are coming before you
today to ask for the Council's assistance in working together to help reduce the
present demand for affordable elderly housing in Maui County. The Lokenani
Hale project is seeking five exemptions that will provide assistance for the
project, which we feel will not pose a threat to safety or welfare of the future
residents or surrounding neighbors. A list of exemptions can be found in
Appendix F of the 201G application.
Briefly, the exemptions we are seeking are from the wastewater assessment fees
for facility expansion, various building permit fees, as well as the parks dedication
and assessment. It is estimated that if all exemptions are granted, it will save the
project approximately $570,000.
This concludes our presentation at this time and we welcome any questions that
you may have. We would like to note that Mr. Fujisawa who worked on the
funding portion does need to leave by 6:15 and the project's architects do need
to leave by 6:45 to catch their flights. So if you have questions for them, if we
could take those first. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Karlynn. Members, any questions for the people
that need to leave? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Karlynn. What are their various areas of
expertise so that we, you know, are they the architect?
MS. KAWAHARA: Right. We have the architects. We have the civil engineer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Civil engineer.
MS. KAWAHARA: We have the landscape architect, also.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I guess my question would be of the landscape
architect then with the one condition that you mentioned about the types of trees.
And my question would be to the landscape architect, if they had any particular
type of tree in mind or if there was anything specified. That would, you know, I
guess the root barriers were some of the things that would be included and so
they would be shade trees or what.
MS. KAWAHARA: Correct. I'll let Russell Chung respond.
MR. CHUNG: I'm Russell, excuse me, I'm Russell Chung, PBR Hawaii, Landscape
Architect. Your question is what type of trees. I have specified trees for the
parking lot, as well as along each side of the road. The ones on the parking lot
on the right side of the page are Tulipwood trees, and the one on the bottom and
the left side along Central is Kou trees, which are natives, and then on the top
part of the page is Pink Tecoma, which is more of a vertical tree because of the
height of the building. We have root barriers specified for a" those trees.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and in terms of the trimming of the trees
because this has always been a continual issue. So many times the trees will be
there for a while and then after a while a" of a sudden they get cut down where
they're stumps. So is there going to be some kind of protocol or policy with
regard to these trees as far as trimming on a long-term basis or is that beyond
where you're just going to be involved in?
MR. CHUNG: Yeah. That's kind of beyond my control, but I would think that they would
have a maintenance program for the trees, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But these are trees that don't have to be dropcrotched or anything like that. They're not going to get to a height where they're
going to be unmanageable and ...
MR. CHUNG: No, no. These trees selected were specifically selected as typical street
trees, which are approved by the Maui County Plan. There was no tree master
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plan to work with available for Wailuku. So we're sort of, you know, went the way
we thought would fit for the environment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. Did you consult with the County arborist on
this?
MR. CHUNG: Yes, we did on these trees.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And this was his recommendation?
MR. CHUNG: Well, not his recommendation, but we had them checked so it was okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and any members of the Outdoor Circle?
MR. CHUNG: No, we have not talked to the Outdoor Circle.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That would be one of the things that I would
also check with just, you know.
MR. CHUNG: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Usually they follow the arborist's recommendation, but
not always. Thank you. That's all the questions I had on that part.
MR. CHUNG: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
evening.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Karlynn, good

MS. KAWAHARA: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I don't know who this is for, you know, who will respond
to it, but like I guess because there is that list of 25 conditions that was set.
Some of the conditions just seems like, you know, business as usual. You know,
you just got to do it, you know. So some of these things like, for example, the
archeological study, not the study, but just perhaps a review of the property
without actually having to get into the depths of that kuleana. Has anything
actually been started I mean on the property itself?
MS. KAWAHARA: Yes. We were required by the State Historic Preservation Division,
Division of Department of Land and Natural Resources, to do a preliminary
archeological inventory survey. As you might know, the majority of the property
is paved and so we were limited in what we could do. However, the State
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Historic Preservation Division did approve the archeological inventory survey and
that recommendation that is within the Maui Redevelopment Agency approval is
based on the recommendation from the State Historic Preservation Division. So
an archeological monitoring plan has been submitted to them for review and
approval and the project is planning to hire an archeologist to monitor during
ground-altering activities.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. And then if I could just refer back to
Ms. Johnson's question as a follow-up regarding the trees. Apparently, because
of the size of that building, we're not talking small trees. We talking full-grown
trees, yeah?
MS. KAWAHARA: I would ... I'll refer that question to the landscape architect.
MR. CHUNG: I think in Karlynn's initial presentation she had mentioned a six to eight
foot height. What she meant by that was that condition is ... that height would
be the installation height for all the trees. So I don't know if I'm answering the
question, but ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Okay. Chairman, thank you, for now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Karlynn, I know we discussed some of
these things that I'm going to be bringing up, but just for the public record. Again,
lighting for the premises, what type of lighting are we looking at and I guess I
would presume shielded lighting and can you comment further? Any footpath
lighting, as well, possibly.
MS. KAWAHARA: I'm going to have the project architect respond to that question.
MR. INOSHITA: I'm Vernon Inoshita from Design Partners, the architects for the
project. As far as the outdoor lighting, there will be shielded lighting. Additional
security lighting will be provided along the buildingl at entries and areas that we
feel proper that may be not open to public surveillances that should be. So it
would be shielded lighting.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And I bring that up because in that ... within that area
there's been, maybe not right in that vicinity, there's been, you know, some
criminal activity I guess in years past or some trespassing and that kind of
unseemly behavior if you know what I mean. Elevators ... how many elevators
in the building?
MR. INOSHITA: There will be one elevator.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: One elevator, okay. And all bathrooms are going to be ADA
compliant?
MR. INOSHITA: Well, there's ADA compliant wing, where they are fully ADA compliant
and the rest of 'em conform to FHA, Fair Housing Act, which can be ADA
compliant with the additional improvements. Although hand grab bars will be
added to all units.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman. Sir, if you could probably stay there, I'd like to
follow-up with Mr. Molina's question to you regarding ADA requirements.
Because this is a four-story structure-MR. INOSHITA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --I believe in initial discussions with Karlynn, one of the
areas that I was concerned with was having handicapped units on, you know, the
upper floors with one elevator in the property and there's just, you know, one
manager of the facility, and if you have handicapped units on each floor, in the
event of an emergency: 1) I don't know how one individual will deal with it; 2)
you know, I don't want to say this is not a discriminatory consideration to not put
handicapped units on upper levels because of the opportunity to choose where
one wants to live-MR. INOSHITA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --however, I think the concern goes beyond
discrimination, the concern goes to safety. And you know, have those issues
been considered in perhaps not even putting handicapped units on the upper
levels?
MR. INOSHITA: Well, first of all, the ADA does not look favorably not giving opportunity
to everybody to choose, number one, and I think the compliance to Fair Housing
Act in effect make all the units accessible. So it's not like if you choose . .. a
person that's handicapped chooses to leave on the ground floor and is not
available, any of the ground floor units will comply with the Fair Housing Act. As
far as safety, this is not an assisted-living facility. It is a rental unit. But there ...
part of the design is to have areas of rescue assistance where there's intercom
available for help, but as far as intercoms within the unit, like an assisted-living
facility, that is not provided at this time.

- 8-

HOUSING AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 2, 2004

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. I think my concern would be in the event say of a
fire-MR. INOSHITA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --and where, you know, it's more than just hitting the
button of the intercom and saying come get me, yeah, because now you have,
you know, 60 somewhat units all, you know, in movement because of this
particular emergency.
MR. INOSHITA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It's just that, you know, and I don't know if it is premature
at this point because it should be an operational thing by, you know, whoever is
going to manage this facility. But just the idea that, you know, I don't know how
to implement something to save lives.
MR. INOSHITA: Okay. Number one, the facility will be fully sprinkler and at a
accelerated criteria instead of the NFPA 13R, which is residential. It's NFPA 13
which is commercial. The intent is not to control fire, but to actually extinguish it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. INOSHITA: In addition to that, the construction is what we call Type V One Hour.
So all the walls are protected. The type of gyp boards and so forth. The building
is actually divided into two halves, in what they call an area separation wall
where doors automatically close if a fire occurs to prevent spread of fire. In
addition to that is the alarms, the smoke detectors that fully alarmed that goes on
enunciated panel and to a monitored security office. In addition to that the Fire
Department, I believe, is right across the street. So the response time should be
less than a minute, we estimate. So we feel that it's very accessible from all four
sides. So we feel that the tenants would not be in jeopardy.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
system?

Yeah.

In regards to fire, do you have overhead sprinkler

MR. INOSHITA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's going be provided to every unit?
MR. INOSHITA: Yes. It also is within the attic space of the roof, too. So if it occurs
anywhere, it will trigger it.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. In regards to security, you gonna have any security for
the building and how it's going to be done?
MR. INOSHITA: Yes, there will be security cameras placed strategically and will go to a
monitored office with tapes and so on and so forth. Also, the windows are ...
comply with the California ordinance as far as security penetration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Anymore questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thanks very much for putting up with this long
day. The design of the building because Charmaine Tavares is not here, I know
she would always ask me to ask this question. In the roof, the way that you have
it designed, will there be a radiant barrier so that it will at least in the wall
construction to ... will it be designed so that it would deflect heat because these
are going to be air-conditioned units. Is that correct?
MR. INOSHITA: Well, yeah. Air-conditioning will not be provided. The tenant can put
them in. Yes, radiant barriers will be provided by cooling R-19 roof. Now all
roofs have to have that. So it will be fully ventilated.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And how about the walls, particularly the ones
that will be facing let's say the direction of the sun in early morning, late
afternoon?
MR. INOSHITA: They are not insulated at this time, but they are double-walled and the
studs are six-inches thick. So it's not normal two by four wall, but they're not
insulated.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: They're not insulated.
MR. INOSHITA: Although the windows are tinted.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Would that add a great deal to the cost, not
necessarily to insulate the whole entire building but just particularly those walls
that were exposed to, you know, like whichever direction the sun is coming from.
MR. INOSHITA: Yeah, maybe the west sun ... the west side probably.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MR. INOSHITA: Okay. I'll take that into consideration and talk it over and get it into the
budget.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And the reason I say that is because ultimately when
you have elderly people who do want the air-conditioning, I'm assuming they
would be paying the bill themselves for their individual unit.
MR. INOSHITA: Well, the electrical cost is part of the rent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So they would ... all right, so that would ...
but then it would keep the rent low.
MR. INOSHITA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Lower for everyone in the building.
MR. INOSHITA: You're right. So we'll try to work it in - west wall.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, yeah. You know, particularly just that just
anything that faces, you know, either the early morning or late afternoon sun and
I don't . . . I'm not sure of the sighting because, you know, I just can't quite
visualize where the sun comes up. Probably late afternoon it WOUldn't be too bad
because this would be blocked somewhat on the lower units by the Ooka's.
MR. INOSHITA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That location where community clinic is going to move
in. The other question I would have is in regard to the ... I guess it's the
materials that are going to be used on the building and these are the ones right in
front.
MR. INOSHITA: Yeah. Those are the ... basically, those are internal materials.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, those are the internal ones. So ...
MR. INOSHITA: The exterior would be basically ... we do a lot of housing, a lot for
Mililani and so on and so forth and these are typical materials we use for
residences 'cause the imagery we want is of a residence rather than of like a real
rental. So the type of windows we've chosen, the siding, which is the semiticious
siding and at the base we used Napa Stone or CMU ... that's split face with
some texture to give some character to the building, but these are typical
residential materials to soften it and give that residential feel.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and then the color would be the color that we're
seeing there?
MR. INOSHITA: It's not exact but we will conform. The Wailuku Code has a palette of
colors that they recommend-- 11 -
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
MR. INOSHITA: --and we'll conform to that. Basically more earth tones but they give a
leeway for the designer to choose but will be conservative but tasteful.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right 'cause I know that that's always a concern, you
know, that because of the fact that this is a 201 G application you don't go
through the, you know, you didn't go through Urban Design Review Board, did
you?
MR. INOSHITA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. See and that's the only thing that I'm glad that
you did go to the MRA though.
MR. INOSHITA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And they made their commentary.
MR. INOSHITA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think the only other thing that I would have is that
with the materials both on the exterior and on the interior, are any of those
utilizing recycled materials at all?
MR. INOSHITA: Yes, there's some. The semiticious boards are I think 30 percent
recycled materials and interior, the carpet used would be recycled materials. So
as far as sustainable features we've tried to incorporate things that we feel
appropriate, you know, low DOC type flooring and that's for indoor air quality,
that sort of thing and it's been incorporated. But it's not fully ... and we wouldn't
qualify for a lead certification but as part of the design process we use that as
normal protocol to choose materials now as long as not really expensive and so
on and so forth. If reasonable, then we try to get it into the project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
And I really appreciate that and I know
Councilmember Tavares would but she's Energy and Economic Development
and she's not here.
MR. INOSHITA: By the way, it is central solar heater system.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. Well, that's really good. And so then you ... I
guess on the windows, too, is there going to be any kind of tinting?
MR. INOSHITA: Yeah. It will be tinted to-- 12-
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, great.
MR. INOSHITA: --refract heat.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, thank you very much for all your information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time I'd like to recognize Member Hokama
who just joined us. Members, any ... Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Can you comment on mitigating
construction noise, as well and any potential disruptions to traffic with
construction? Will there be ... do you anticipate any?
MR. INOSHITA: Well, there will be a traffic plan filed to control trucks and where
staging occurs, that sort of thing. Hours of operation are also controlled. I forgot
the exact hours but only during the day, for instance, none during the weekends,
so there is control space in the specs now and I think the MRA address some of
that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions, Members? If none, thank you very much. I
have a question for Karlynn. Once the project is completed, who's going to be
managing the property?
MS. KAWAHARA: I believe the developer is in the process of selecting a management
company, however, the person or the group has not been selected, yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Members? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can you tell us why Central is the one street that is not
being asked to be repaved?
MS. KAWAHARA: That was a condition that was created by the Maui Redevelopment
Agency and I believe it's because at the meeting ... at the MRA meeting, Public
Works Deputy Director was there and had mentioned that it had been resurfaced
fairly recently.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So there is no intention during construction that Central
Avenue will be impacted in any way?
MS. KAWAHARA: That's hard for me to say at this point.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
question?

You have someone that could respond to that

MS. KAWAHARA: I will call on the Civil Engineer.
MS. KODAMA: Hi, my name is Diane Kodama, M&E Pacific. We're the civil
consultants. The project would have a trenching within Central Avenue for the
double-check assembly and the water meter, but currently the repaving limits
because it was repaved recently and the other streets are in badly need of repair,
of resurfacing, we're working it out with Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So can I take your response as saying, yes, you will be
digging up Central Avenue?
MS. KODAMA: Yes, we will at minimal trenching, not necessarily digging up and a lot
of it, not like the whole frontage. It will be two-feet wide trench.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I hope the department remembers this when we
get the complaints regarding the road. That's all I have for the Engineer. Thank
you very much.
I have another question. This project has a proposed lifespan of 50 years under
the affordable program with the Federal tax credits.
MS. KAWAHARA: That's correct. That is one of the conditions of the approval of the
low-income or affordable housing credits was that it is required to stay as an
affordable elderly housing project for 50 years.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Minimal or is that the max?
MS. KAWAHARA: Min ... well, ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just the term ... that's just the term?
MS. KAWAHARA: Exactly. After 50 years, it would be up to the owner to decide if he
would like to keep it or not or, you know, change it into a regular housing
subdivision or housing complex.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So if it changes after 50 years and you go let's say
market rental?
MS. KAWAHARA: That would be an option for the owner.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That would be an option?
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MS. KAWAHARA: I believe it would be. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, it'll be an historic building after 50 years .
. . . (laughter) ...

I just was wondering if there were any other conditions to the Federal tax credit
for the affordable? Because while I can support, you know, the granting of
waivers for things of the Code and subdivision requirements to get this project
built, I don't feel to give waivers for properties that become market-value after
that.
That's all Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Also joining us this evening is
Council Chair Dain Kane. Members, anymore questions for the ... Karlynn? If
not, thank you very much.
MS. KAWAHARA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, at this time I'd like to call upon the Director of
Housing and Human Concerns to give us comments in regards to this project
here.
MS. LEE: Mr. Chair, Members, we are in full support of this project. As you know, there
is a tremendous demand for affordable housing of all types and this will help with
the 62 units that they will provide in Central MauL
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time, I would like to call on the Planning
Department. You have any comments to make in regards to the project?
MR. FOLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to repeat what Director Lee just
said. The Planning Department is also in strong support of this project. We have
worked long and hard with the applicants and their consultants on the design of
this project. There have been a number of issues to address and they've been
addressed by the 25 conditions required by the Maui Redevelopment Agency
and the question before the Committee tonight is whether or not for you to review
the ... excuse the fees. That's the question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. FOLEY: But the Administration supports the Council's approval of the fees being
waived.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time, I would like to call on the Public Works
Director to provide comments.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We also have participated with the
Housing Department, as well as the MRA, in deliberations on the project and we
have given our comments on the physical design aspects of the project and are
in support of the project, as well. I don't have anything else to add and would be
happy to answer any questions, which Committee may have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Public Works?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Good afternoon, Mr. Arakawa, or should I say good
evening, Mr. Arakawa. Your comment on traffic, level of service, you are looking
at "C" once the project is fully constructed. Can you add additional comments
about drainage, as well?
MR. ARAKAWA: Drainage is going to be generally a safety issue so the applicant will
comply with all applicable drainage ... County drainage rules so that basically
the minimum standard is there's gonna be no net increase in runoff as a result of
the development of this particular property and the applicant will comply with that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: And crosswalk, I guess, are you looking at I guess that
connects to the what will soon be the community clinic from the project, are you
looking at maybe like, what's that, a speed table type of crosswalk or something
just to I guess alert drivers more because you're going to have a lot of senior
crossing through there?
MR. ARAKAWA: I don't believe the MRA really looked at that. We didn't really look at
that, as well. Nani Street itself is a fairly narrow right-of-way. There was some
concern about crossing of Central Avenue. So there is gonna be a mid-block
crossing along Central along the project's frontage but we can certainly look at
that particular crossing, as well.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We have heard from the project engineer, M&E Pacific.
Mr. Arakawa, can you tell us from your department's point of view why Central is
not being asked to be resurfaced?
MR. ARAKAWA: The requirement that our department has on any developer that
comes before us is that they generally are required to resurface one-half of the
required roadway.
So Central in this particular case has recently been
resurfaced. Nani is in fairly good shape, but the other two frontages, Lake and
Wailani, are not in real good shape. So what we had discussed at the MRA was
that we'd look at possibly having the applicant resurface the entire vehicle travel
area for the Lake Street and the Wailani Street rights-of-way and also do
whatever needed to be done on Nani and leave Central alone. Whatever work
that they do on Central would be minimal. Of course, they would be required to
patch it according to our standards, but it will be a patch that will be visible, but
as the applicant said, it will be fairly minimal trenching work that we're talking
about. Again, the resurfacing that we're talking about along Lake and Wailani is
just along, you know, the frontage of the project itself.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know in regards to the MRA's responsibility for this
redevelopment area? Part of the concern that comes back to us is the need of
improvements ... subsurface improvements. After this project is done, is the
MRA .confident that there is no other subsurface requirements that's going to be
needed regarding those four streets, Central, Lake, Wailani, and Nani? I would
hate for us to go back and open up the roads again. Are you aware of any
requirements of the department?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as planned CIP, I don't know of anything, you know, on the
books as far as the six-year program right now for that particular area.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Whatever improvements they're being asked to do
would be their pro rata share even if we're to move in right after this, that would
satisfy the County?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, as far as their improvements like for drainage improvements, for
instance, you know, they're going to be taking care of whatever additional water
that they're generating on their site right now. So they're going to be putting in
some subsurface drains in order to address that. In the future and this is
probably going to be a long-term issue, there may be some need ... the County
may have some need to do some drainage system improvements ... some
system-wide improvements. However, I can tell you it's not on the six-year CIP
at this point.
The other connections, you know, they're just doing the
connections to the County system now like the sewer lines, the other
connections, as well, whatever cable connections that may be needed, as well.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Have your department made the applicant aware that
part of the MRA's ability to finance projects within the district is assessing the
property owners to help pay for the improvements?
MR. ARAKAWA: They should refer that question to Planning and maybe you folks have
a better idea as far as the MRA's involvement, you know, on that issue.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, John.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Summers, I just need to know that the applicant is
fully aware of what occurs within a redevelopment agency area and that this is
part of the area and that part of the State statute language authorize us to create
the Maui Redevelopment Agency and how they can fund improvements within
that area can be tied to the assets of private property.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the Council. HRS 53, the
Urban Renewal law, does provide for such powers and the agency is aware of
that. The agency did not exercise that particular authority for this project given
the limited capacity of the agency to initiate and maintain such a program.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My point is that if and when we do something more
major, whether it be Central or the other adjoining streets, that at least the
property owner is fully informed of how the agency can move forward to do those
improvements and not necessarily come to Council and ask for an obligation
bond float or other types of financial consideration.
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So they are aware? The department and the agency
have made them fully aware of what can occur within the redevelopment district?
MR. SUMMERS: They are aware that the agency has these authorities.
studied the laws.

They've

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, anymore questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I don't know who this ... if this would be addressed to
maybe Public Works, but in regard to the traffic circulation plan, I just wondered,
John, you might know or maybe Milton, I'm not sure which one of you. But
anyway if a bus, particularly because these are elderly people, you now the size
of our MEO buses, are they going to have any difficulty navigating through that
area getting in and out, turning around, or what traffic flow pattern will they be
using to come and pick up the seniors if it's needed?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Council member Johnson, the Wailuku Redevelopment Area is, as you
know, a special area. It's an older, established part of town and it's an area
where the MRA has decided that we will not be imposing our normal County
standard streets because to do so would significantly change the character of the
town itself. So in terms of the turning radiuses [sic] ... radii for the larger
vehicles like the MEO vehicles that would be coming around, it certainly going to
be a little tighter than normal, but it certainly is not an unsafe situation. I mean
you may have to go a little slower than you would normally traverse a road of that
size. It's not an unsafe situation. It's something that, you know, we can support.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and because I know you're showing cars within,
you know, the architect is showing cars in there, many of the elderly people may
not even have vehicles so it may not be as bad as we think, but the primary
concern is just safety and then, you know, when the vehicles sometimes back up,
you know, you just want to make sure that everything is thought through in terms
of the circulation. That's my major concern. So they do have a circulation
pattern, too?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions, Members? If not, Milton, in regards to the
exemptions, looking at the number of exemptions that are being granted, can you
expound on the permit fees as far as exemptions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If you would entertain the question, that what is the
total exemption dollar value is and what . . . how is it arrived at, whether it be
from building permits, park assessments, I think that would assist the Committee.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I believe Karlynn had presented the Committee with
a total number. If she could give us the amount for each of the exemptions as far
as permit fees ... Appendix F, Members.
MS. KAWAHARA: I would like to just let you know also that some of these are
estimations and rough estimates and I'll let you know which ones are because,
for example, the plumbing permits, you know, we did numbers based off of the
take offs of the number of fixtures because that's how the County of Maui has
their plumbing permits. For example, if we go through the list, as I mentioned
earlier, the estimated total is about $575,000. If we look at Exemption A for
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driveways, that's about a $90 fee. For the Wastewater Assessment Fee, the
Public Works had submitted a letter saying that it would be $72,000. For the
Item C, Fire Code, again that's based off of the ... (change tape) ... five percent
I believe of the building permit fee which totals out to about $1,700. The
Electrical Code, again it's a rough estimate based on the number of fixtures, we
have $4,300. The plumbing code is about $1,200. And the building permit fee,
we're estimating at about $13,500. The Parks and Playground Assessment, the
Ooka project I guess is still under the old system because their preliminary
subdivision was submitted last year and so the way we calculated their parks
assessment was based on the number of units minus three, times the 500
square foot park dedication if it was land, which came out to 29,500 square feet
because there are 62 units. And as I mentioned previously, there are five parcels
and all parcels are zoned right now business/multi-family and so the assessment
is a little bit higher and what I did is I took an average of the square foot
evaluation and that evaluation came out to $16 per square foot so when you
multiplied the 29,500 square foot park assessment times the $16 fee, the value is
$474,000. And finally Exemption E, the Grading and Grubbing Fee is about
$120.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Thank you, Karlynn.
Okay, also in the audience today, if we could hear from the Fire Department.
MR. MARTIN: Good evening, Chair, Members of the Committee. I'm Captain Val
Martin with the Fire Prevention Bureau. We have been in written communication
regarding the project. We do have some requests and it's my understanding that
they have agreed to our request, specifically the fire sprinkler issue and it's also
my understanding that a fire hydrant will also be added to meet a requirement
and some other minor issues that we don't see it bing a problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any questions for the Fire Department?
thank you very much. Oh, Member Hokama.

If not,

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One, just one. Ca tain, you heard Mr. Mateo's
question about the ADA requirement and by res onding to potential situations
like fire ...
MR. MARTIN: Yeah, I did hear the ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is it a department's concern?
MR. MARTIN: Actually, we do not get involved as far as the ADA placement. It is ... it
would be a concern for us knowing that it is a occupancy that would have those
that may need a little assistance, but it's hard for us ... it's not a department's
concern to say who can live where. If someone decides to leave upstairs, that
may qualify for an ADA unit, the Fire Department is not going to say or bring up
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any issue that would ... that we would think that it may not be a good idea. If
there were a fire, we can't use the elevators anyway, yeah, so the elevators ...
no matter how many elevators we put in, it still would not be ... you wouldn't be
able to use it. I think it is a great option to make what we call rescue areas where
someone could come out of their unit and go into an area that's designed to
prevent fire from coming in your way. As far as the fire issue, the way that the
sprinkler system will be designed and the materials that we have requested and
they have agreed to use is upgraded. There's no way that I can see a fire getting
out of control in a building like this with the proper sprinkler system, piping,
inspections, water applied. If everything is in proper working order, there's no
way that a fire can get out of control. It is designed to extinguish the fire and to
keep the fire in the compartment that it started in. So if it's a unit, we may have a
unit that's totally involved in a fire, but that's it. As far as smoke goes, that's a
different issue. We do want to make sure that we do take some measures as far
as smoke goes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Captain, and I hope you're right because
the proximity of our Wailuku station to this project, you could throw the stone and
hit the buildings.
MR. MARTIN: Yeah, I think ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think response time is a concern right now. I think the
concern is the level of degree of hazard we're going to ask our firefighters like
yourself, to put yourself to save people. That's the concern I think if anything is
coming from the Committee.
MR. MARTIN: Yeah. We really propose fire sprinklers even in residential dwellings,
single-family dwellings. I would like to see fire sprinklers in all types of
occupancies so if we want to, you know, encourage that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Captain.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions for the Captain? If not, thank you very much
for being here.
MR. MARTIN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Captain, I'm sorry. Sorry I had the delayed
action there. Is it going to be important for us to consider a ladder in Wailuku
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because of buildings such as this as well as existing buildings as part of our
infrastructure resource?
MR. MARTIN: That would be a tough question for me to answer. I think that would
need some research to be done. That would be something that the department
could look into as far as using the ladder, yeah. I could bring that up with the Fire
Chief and see what kind of answers he can come up with.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, what I'll do is just from my office and as the
Wailuku rep I guess I'll just generate that out of my office as a question to the
Chief and the Department for them to take a look at this situation and report back
to us. And I can bring that back as a major, you know, not of this particular item,
but something on a bigger picture. So thank you for allowing me to ask that
question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Thank you, Captain, for being here.
MR. MARTIN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, at this time I'm going to have public testimony.
We do have some people ... how many we got, just one? Okay, we do have
one person that wanted to testify in regards to this particular agenda item. Sally
Raisbeck and I know you know the rules. So you have three minutes, one
minute to conclude .
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MS. RAISBECK: Hello again, Council Members. You've had an incredibly long day but
not as long as some. I was not here at three in the morning the other day ... the
other night. I wanted to make just a few comments. One is that to have 62
apartments or 61 with the manager renting at prices affordable to 50 percent or
less of median income and affordable for 50 years is like a dream come true. I
think it's marvelous, marvelous. I may want one of these apartments in another
15 years and my sister, too. My sister makes me think of the question of will the
management of this allow pets. Many older people need their dog or their cat
and allow ... I don't know that you can legally make it a requirement but I just
want to make you aware of the importance that a pet has to an older person.
Solar ... I didn't quite catch. Are they going to use solar hot water and make
use of that great big roof and so on?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Central.
MS. RAISBECK: Yeah. Okay, great. The other question I had was the drawing doesn't
really fill the surrounding area and it will ... a four-story building ... there are
small houses in that area and I presume that they will be cast in the shade
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compared to what is there now. I don't know if any of them have realized how
much of a difference it's going to make to their houses and their yards to have a
four-story building next to them, but to me it's worth it. My other main point is ...
I know this is not Ooka's building, it's their parking lot, but the loss of Ooka's as a
grocery store is a terrible loss to Wailuku. We've been going through all this
planning principles with, you know, planned villages and so on. Wailuku is a
walkable community, but if you take away its grocery store, it's gonna be awful
hard on people who don't have cars. And so in the plan ... check up on the
MRA and make sure they are planning space for a supermarket. It doesn't have
to be a huge one but enough of a supermarket to replace Ooka's, which is used
by so many local people, and with sufficient parking so that people like me can
come there. Let's see, was there anything else I wanted to mention. Yeah, I'm
just thrilled that there will be these, these apartments. I'm very happy to see the
questions you're asking about safety and crosswalks and digging up the street. I
think it's an ideal place for an older person if they can get to grocery shopping.
They'll have medical care available within walking distance. It's a wonderful
traditional village. We got there with a library and with ... it's a great place. So
thank you very much and I hope you pass this out. Oh, I know what I wanted to
say.
MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
MS. RAISBECK: One more minute. The exemption from fees, if it's 575,000 total, that
works out to about $9,300 per apartment subsidy and that's ... as a taxpayer,
that's fine with me. Great, I think it's cheap at the price. Riki's concern about
only 50 years affordable, well, it would be nice to have it 100 years affordable,
but I don't know that you can do that. None of us will be around to worry about it
at that point. But the parks thing ... when it turned out the parks thing was the
major exemption, it reminded me of another question I had that would make this
even more ideal. If they had two-thirds of an acre for a community garden or a
little place where the residents can go down and sit, if there was some land
associated with it for the residents with little gardens or whateverMS. ALUETA: Four minutes.
MS. RAISBECK: --that would be ... that would be worth an awful lot. I don't know if
there's any land available for that, but that would be worth a great deal. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Sally. Any questions for our testifier? Thank you,
Sally, for enduring these long days that we've been having these past five weeks .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, also we received two letters in support of the elderly
housing from the Maui Nui Housing Task Force, as well as Mayor Alan Arakawa.
Members, if you don't have any questions ... Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. I just have one question. Did the Administration at
any time hold a formal public hearing prior to it being submitted to the Council?
And I'm aware of, you know, various meetings, MRA meeting, you know,
Appendix G, H, I, and J, which lists a couple with the Wailuku Main Street
Association, one with the MRA informational meeting, as well as one with the
residents within 500 feet of the area. So I was just wondering if there was at
least a formal public hearing so anybody with a posted agenda would be able to
be informed within the Wailuku/Kahului area knowing about this project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Alice, Alice, could you answer that?
MS. LEE: We did not hold a public hearing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: John.
MR. SUMMERS: The Maui Redevelopment Agency did conduct two workshops and a
public hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is that the public hearing of July or what is listed here?
MR. SUMMERS: March 19th .
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: March 19th of 2003?
MR. SUMMERS: 2004.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay and I'm only asking that question because it's not
listed within the application itself. So I was just wondering because what's listed
is the four that I cited. And that was just normally through Sunshine Law
because of MRA it was posted in. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions, Members? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, the only question I had and I'm not sure if this
would be to Mr. Kushi with regard to the waiver of the parks fee. Is there, you
know, obviously 62 units may not and particularly elderly ... it mayor may not
generate a lot of park impact. I know we have some amenities in that area.
We've got the little pool and then down the line, we've got, you know, some little
pocket parks that we have in that area. Could we maybe have like a, you know, I
think it was suggested by Ms. Raisbeck some little area within the complex that
we could recommend instead of having the park fee like if they had their little
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community gardener, if they do have dogs, you know, a little ... some little space
or green area where we could accept that as their satisfaction of that park
dedication or don't you know if we can do that?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair. Member Johnson. As I recall, the project that was presented at
the MRA hearing, this applicant really came back to the MRA three times, I
believe, but they had to revise their schedule to accommodate parking. At no
time did they provide us of an area for an internal park. They were constrained
already within the parameters of their property just because of parking. Now, as
Karlynn said, you know, I haven't checked it out, but taking her word that in lieu
of the fees, you know, in lieu of cash, they could provide us 29,500 square feet. I
don't know where they would get that, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah and I'm not even looking at that much, you
know, but just something that I just wondered if that was really an option and I
don't know how the other Committee members feel, but you know, when you're
living in a little complex that's largely all concrete and sometimes if you do have a
little cat or a dog and just want to leave it out for a little while, I know people don't
walk their cats, but mostly people walk their little dogs. So even if you had just a
small area I guess that would be something that, you know, while it might not be
a requirement, Mr. Chair, I just would like to see something provided and
definitely have them include pets. I don't know what's on like ... well, I don't if
it's north, but it's at the top part of the little sketch that we're looking-CHAIR PONTANILLA: With all the trees.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --at where they have the trees, yeah, and then along
the side there there's also on the left-hand side there's also like a little green
space ... I don't know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe we can ask the applicant.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, if Karlynn or somebody could address that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Karlynn ... , (short pause) ... I know this is your first time.
MS. KAWAHARA: Sorry.... (short pause) ... Thank you very much. You know as
Corporation Counsel Kushi pointed out we were required by the MRA to maxi ...
or to meet the parking requirements and as a result we maximized the areas you
can see from the rendering and I'll let the landscape architect elaborate further.
That one sliver that you'll see next to the vacant parcel, you know, is probably
pretty much the closest thing we have. However, it is a narrow piece, and it's on
the west side of the building. So, yeah, he's pointing it out there on the
rendering. But there are I guess planting concerns with that, as well, and I'll let
him elaborate further on that.
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MR. CHUNG: I think in terms of left over space, basically there's only the west side of
the main tower so where it adjoins the space that they don't own that lower left
hand corner. It is tight back there although it would be the best space because of
the western ... it's at the west side and it will get the sun and you want things to
grow. We also have the condition of the palms to help soften the building, which
would create again shade in that corner. So, again, it's a difficult thing. You're
creating some micro-climates down there. There's potential but very tight.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Do you know what the actual, you know, space is like
the width and ...
MR. CHUNG: I think it ranges around 12 to 20 feet, you know, kind of tapers that way.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But ...
MR. CHUNG: And correct me if I'm wrong, Diane, it is sloping over there as well, right,
that back towards the building a little bit. So it's not all flat.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but even if you ... you can't fill that area then
probably because of the adjacent property.
MR. CHUNG: Fill the area?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I mean just so that it would be flat.
MR. CHUNG: Oh, flat.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Like that it would be level.
MR. CHUNG: Yeah, I guess it could be done.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah and I appreciate that. The question I guess then
would be to Karlynn. Because, you know, and I gather from Mr. Kushi that really
you either satisfy the park requirements or you don't satisfy it, but I think it's more
important, you know, that you take care the needs of the elderly and do what you
did with MRA, but I think if you would be willing to kind of consider that as a
potential little walking space, or you know, something where people could sit
maybe with a bench or something in that area to just at least resemble a park. I
would feel a lot better-MR. CHUNG: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --then waiving all the park fees.
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MR. CHUNG: I guess that could be done. I thought you were talking about maybe like
opportunities to grow vegetables and things like that, you know, like a vegetable
garden.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, you know, that too because you could do like a
little trellis and then have climbing tomatoes, or you know, other stuff, but I don't
know. It's just a thought.
MR. CHUNG: There is, you know, a little privacy issue as well because those ground
floor balconies are right on that side so you would have, you know, your
community sort of trampling back there, if you will. So I don't know how people
on the ground floor would feel with, you know, everybody walking past through
there because it's not that big, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right, thank you.
MR. CHUNG: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out from Karlynn. Are you going
to allow pets?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Karlynn.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are there any intentions? I think that was one of the
questions I had asked you when we met.
MS. KAWAHARA: Yeah. There was that question and I don't know that it's been
decided for certain. We did pose that question to the development team and I
can reiterate that question to them and present you with an answer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, 'cause for me, the statement that Sally made
it's really important. Because particularly when you have companion animals
and particularly when people have lost loved ones, sometimes the only thing they
have left is their pet. So at least permitting it for those individuals that leave on
the ground floor. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Anymore questions, Members?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Recommendation?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama. I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead. Chair, your recommendation, but if ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I couldn't see you by the way. .,. (laughter) ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What is the maximum occupancy per unit that you folks
are planning with this one-bedroom, one-bath program?
MS. KAWAHARA: I believe it would be two persons ... two adults.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I just ask that because your calculations for water
and wastewater is geared for 62 people on your formula. So I'm wondering if
you're limiting it just to one person per unit.
MS. KAWAHARA: I'm gonna let the Civil Engineer respond to that.
MS. KODAMA: We'll be revising it as we answer the building permit comments and we
will make it accordingly to the max amount.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay and maybe for the, you know, the department,
like yourself as an engineer you deal with it a lot, when you say fixture units,
that's everything from a toilet to a showerhead to a dishwasher connection. That
would be all considered fixture units?
MS. KODAMA: Everything required in the UPC, the Uniform Plumbing-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Building code?
MS. KODAMA: --Code.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Plumbing code?
MS. KODAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Your calculation for potable water ...
MS. KODAMA: Will be updated with the water supply standards in the needed fire flow
and domestic meter calculations.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So what comments have you received from
them? That the numbers look kind of low in the spectrum?
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MS. KODAMA: Right. At that time when the 201 G application was made, we did not
know that Maui County incorporated irrigation in the calculations. So with our
building permit comments right now we will be upping it to a two-inch meter.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
revisions?

Chairman, are you going to request those updated

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. If we could have the updated revisions in regards to the
water use?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman. Including wastewater,
too, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And wastewater.
MS. KODAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions, Members? Where's Member Molina?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, sorry.... (laughter) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Okay, if there's no more questions,-VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Recommendation?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair's recommendation at this time is to approve the
resolution entitled "Approving the Lokenani Hale Affordable Elderly Housing
Project Pursuant to Section 201 G-118, Hawaii Revised Statutes" to the full
Council.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved and second, all in favor say aye.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers
Carroll,
Johnson,
Vice-Chair Molina, and Chair Pontanilla.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

EXC.:

None.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution approving the
Lokenani Hale Affordable Elderly Housing Project pursuant
to Section 201 G-118, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time I'd like to close public testimony.
Members, if there is no objection I'll close public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Anymore questions, Members? If not, I know it's
been a long day, long five weeks. So meeting adjourned .... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

6:45 p.m.

APPROVED:
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